


 

1 | P a g e  
 

TOWN OF TALLULAH FALLS 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

255 MAIN STREET, TALLULAH FALLS, GA 30573 

WITH VIDEO CONFERENCE STREAMING AVAILABLE FOR THE PUBLIC 

JUNE 4, 2020, 6:00 PM 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Council meeting for June 4, 2020 of the Town Council of Tallulah Falls, Georgia was called to 

order at 6:16 PM by Mayor Mike Early after confirming technology streaming platforms were both 

functioning. Social distancing protocols were observed as required by an Executive Order issued by 

Governor Kemp in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. A simultaneous live-stream view of the 

meeting was available through YouTube at 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCytr3V3naaBwBwlzBlg-y8A and had been previously circulated to 

the media and citizens through e-mail notification.  The public was also able to participate in the 

meeting via Webex with Meeting #794 499 414.  

 

  PRESENT WERE:  Mayor Mike Early 

      Mayor Pro tem Larry Hamilton  

      Councilperson Joey Fountain 

      Councilperson Craig Weatherly 

      Town Clerk Linda Lapeyrouse 

      Police Chief Tonya Elrod 

       

PRESENT VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE: Councilperson Deb Goatcher 

      Town Attorney Warren Tillery 

      Public at large – see attached list  

 

Mayor Early welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked for a moment of silence. 

 

REGULAR MEETING: 

 

A motion was made by Councilperson Weatherly to approve the agenda.  The motion was 

seconded by Councilperson Fountain and unanimously approved. 

 

The Consent Agenda included minutes of the Council Meeting May 7, 2020, Executive Session May 7, 

2020, department reports from Water, Police, Fire, and Finance, ratification of SPLOST project list and 

CD renewal with Oconee Federal Bank. Copies are attached hereto and made a part hereof. A motion 

was made by Councilperson Weatherly to approve the items on the consent agenda.  The motion 

was seconded by Councilperson Hamilton and unanimously approved.  

 

REPORTS: 

 

Attorney Report – Attorney Tillery reported that the Judge had approved the Town’s request to be 

removed from the Frye property litigation unless and until evidence is shown that the Town owns any of 

the lots with an interest in the “Park.” 

 

  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCytr3V3naaBwBwlzBlg-y8A


 

2 | P a g e  
 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

Following a thorough discussion of the parameters, tolerance, flashing hours, times of year, review 

procedure, education component and potential for negative consequences, a motion was made by 

Councilperson Weatherly to proceed with Blueline Solutions for the automatic speed enforcement 

system. The motion was seconded by Councilperson Fountain.  The motion passed with 

Weatherly, Fountain and Goatcher voting in favor of the motion and Hamilton voting against. A 

motion was then made by Councilperson Fountain to have the Town attorney review the proposed 

contract. The motion was seconded by Councilperson Weatherly. The motion passed with 

Weatherly, Fountain and Goatcher voting in favor of the motion and Hamilton voting against. 

Attorney Tillery will work with Cam Reed at Blueline Solutions to finalize a contract for Council’s 

approval. 

 

The Charter Amendment approved by Council was re-drafted by legislative counsel which changed 

some of the original language.  The draft bill was worked on by legislative counsel with input from the 

Town’s attorney to make sure we were achieving the Council’s desired results.  Mayor and Council have 

reviewed the new bill language.  A motion was made by Councilperson Weatherly to approve the 

bill language as presented.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Goatcher and 

unanimously approved.  There is still a chance that the bill will not be taken up this session, but if not, 

it will be ready for next session. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:   

 

Town Clerk Lapeyrouse reported on some of the document management systems she has been gathering 

information on.  Councilperson Fountain had another contact he recommended.  Lapeyrouse will 

continue to work on a suitable solution.  No action was taken. 

 

Councilperson Hamilton submitted a sign permit request for the restaurant on Main Street.  As such, he 

recused himself from any vote on the matter. Hamilton explained that the signs would be the exact same 

signage that had been previously done and taken by previous tenants. The signs will be a part of the 

restaurant property and the building going forward. A motion was made by Councilperson Fountain 

to approve the sign permit request as presented.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson 

Weatherly.  The motion was approved by Fountain, Weatherly and Goatcher.  Hamilton recused.  

Mayor Early also voted yes based on the will and intent of the Council.  This was done in case of a 

possible legal deadlock interpretation.  Attorney Tillery explained the deadlock verbiage in the 

Charter. 

 

The Downtown Development Authority provided a recommendation for Council to reappoint Dustin 

Rogers to the DDA.  His current term is expiring, and Dustin has indicated a desire to be reappointed.  A 

motion was made by Councilperson Weatherly to reappoint Dustin Rogers to the DDA.  The 

motion was seconded by Councilperson Fountain and unanimously approved. 

 

Dates for future work session was discussed.  The first budget work session was agreed on by the Mayor 

and Council as June 18, 2020, at 6 PM.  A tentative work session to review the Planning Commission’s 

anticipated recommendation for a Short-Term Vacation Rental Ordinance was set for June 11, 2020, at 6 

PM.  If needed, another work session for the budget will be June 25, 2020, at 6 PM. 

 

  



 

3 | P a g e  
 

MAYOR’S COMMENTS: None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Councilperson Hamilton said that the water report from EMS requested a flow meter on the backflush 

line to monitor water usage.  Mayor Early said it would be on the next month’s agenda since we did not 

know about it at the time of setting the agenda. Mayor Early also commented that the Fire Department 

had not done any flushing of hydrants and EMS would be notified if they do.  We should have more 

information on the tank cleaning proposals by the July meeting as well as the Phase 1 tank work. 

 

Keith Nelms said that the DDA will continue with the current members as suggested by the Town 

Attorney based on State law interpretation by Dan McRae and legislative counsel. If things are kept as 

is, any potential issues will be resolved with the Charter change. They will be electing officers at their 

next meeting. 

 

There being no other business before the Council, a motion was made by Councilperson 

Weatherly to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Fountain and 

unanimously approved.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:02 PM. 

  

 

 

______________________________________ 

Linda Lapeyrouse, Town Clerk 



TOWN OF TALLULAH FALLS 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

BUDGET WORK SESSION 

255 MAIN STREET, TALLULAH FALLS, GA 30573 

WITH VIDEO CONFERENCE STREAMING AVAILABLE FOR THE PUBLIC 

JUNE 18, 2020, 6:00 PM 

MINUTES 

The Budget Work Session for June 18, 2020 of the Town Council of Tallulah Falls, Georgia was 

called to order at 6:00 PM by Mayor Mike Early. Social distancing protocols were observed in 

response to the COVID-19 pandemic. A simultaneous live-stream view of the meeting was 

available through YouTube at https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCytr3V3naaBwBwlzBlg-y8A 

and had been previously circulated to the media and citizens through e-mail notification and the 

Town’s website.  The public was also able to participate in the meeting via Webex with Meeting 

#794 499 414.  

PRESENT WERE: Mayor Mike Early 

Mayor Pro tem Larry Hamilton  

Councilperson Joey Fountain 

Councilperson Craig Weatherly 

Town Clerk Linda Lapeyrouse 

Police Chief Tonya Elrod 

PRESENT VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE: Councilperson Deb Goatcher 

Public at large – see attached list 

WORK SESSION: 

A motion was made by Councilperson Weatherly to approve the agenda.  The motion was 

seconded by Councilperson Fountain and unanimously approved. 

Mayor Early made a statement regarding his recommended budget. The budget recommended 

lowering the Clerk’s salary, increasing police presence, and addressing Town Hall hours of 

operation.  Mayor Early explained that his recommendation had nothing to do with the current 

Clerk but felt the salary was out of sync with other small municipalities. 

The Mayor and Council then reviewed each department’s line-item budget. Changes to the 

Mayor’s recommended budget included leaving the salary of the Clerk at the current rate, 

increasing the salary of the Police Chief to $55,000, and leaving part-time police salaries at 

$12,000 until such a time as the GCIC program is implemented and able to support an additional 

salary.  Councilperson Goatcher stated the importance of investing in your employees. 

The budget will be modified to reflect the discussion from the work session and will be 

advertised to the public.  A public hearing will be scheduled at least one week prior to 

adoption of the budget. 



There being no other business before the Council, a motion was made by Councilperson 

Fountain to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Weatherly 

and unanimously approved.   

The meeting adjourned at 7:35 PM. 

______________________________________ 

Linda Lapeyrouse, Town Clerk 



GENERAL FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

General Fund Revenue
Property Taxes $130,670
Franchise Taxes $23,435
Hotel/Motel Tax -Transfer In $1,800
Insurance Premium Tax $12,700
Motor Vehicle Tax $8,500
Licenses/Pemits $3,800
Grants $22,400
Fines & Forfeitures $110,793
Interest Revenues $365
Contributions $3,400
Rent $4,800

Total Revenue $322,663

Expenditures
Legislative $6,000
Executive $1,190
Administration $107,894
Municipal Court $20,000
Police $116,787
Fire $26,492
Roads $32,300
Transfer Out - Water Fund $12,000

Total Expenditures $322,663

NET $0

Legislative
2%

Executive
0%

Administration 
34%

Municipal 
Court

6%

Police
36%

Fire
8%

Roads
10%

Transfer Out - Water Fund
4%

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

Property 
Taxes, 41%

Franchise Taxes, 
7%

Hotel/Motel Tax -
Transfer In, 1%

Insurance 
Premium Tax, 

4%

Motor Vehicle 
TaxLicenses/Pemits, 

1%

Grants, 7%

Fines & 
Forfeitures, 

34%

Interest Revenues, 
0%

Contributions , 
1% Rent, 1%

GENERAL FUND REVENUES



WATER FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

Water Fund Income

Charges for Service $55,000

Tap-on Fees $1,500

Penalties/Late Fees $230

Interest Revenues $50

Interfund Transfer In - GF $12,000

Total Operating Income $68,780

Water Fund Capital Budget

Interfund Transfer In - SPLOST XIX $93,224

Total Capital Income $93,224

Total Water Fund Income $162,004

Water Fund Expenses

Salaries $12,000

Employee Benefits $2,560

Professional Services $16,750

Other Purchased Services $3,025

Repairs/ Maintenance $16,595

Supplies $17,800

Other Charges $50

Total Operating Expenses $68,780

Water Fund Capital Budget

Water System Capital Projects

HNM Improvements $93,224

Total Water Fund Capital Expenses $93,224

Total Water Fund Expenses $162,004

NET income/expenses $0

Salaries, 7%
Employee 

Benefits, 2%
Professional 

Services, 10%

Other 
Purchased 

Services, 2%

Repairs/ 
Maintenance, 

10%

Supplies, 11%

Other Charges, 
0%

HNM 
Improvements, 

58%

WATER FUND EXPENSES

Charges for 
Service

34%

Tap-on Fees
1%

0% Interest
Revenues

0%Interfund 
Transfer In -

GF
7%

Interfund 
Transfer In -
SPLOST XIX

58%

WATER FUND OPERATING INCOME



CAPITAL PROJECTS
BUDGET OVERVIEW

Grant Fund
Revenue and Other Sources

LMIG (2019) 13,619
LMIG (2020) 14,966
TOTAL REVENUE SOURCES 28,585

Expenditures
Roads/Bridges

Road Paving LMIG Project $28,585
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $28,585

SPLOST IV FUND
Revenue and Other Sources

SPLOST IV (prior years) $6,239
Interest Revenue $15
TOTAL REVENUE SOURCES $6,254

Expenditures
Roads/Bridges

LMIG 30% Match 2019 $4,100
River Street Culvert (partial pay) $2,154

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $6,254

LMIG Capital Budget Expenses

Road Paving LMIG Project

SPLOST IV Capital Budget Expenses

LMIG 30% Match 2019 River Street Culvert (partial pay)



CAPITAL PROJECTS
BUDGET OVERVIEW

SPLOST VI FUND
Revenue and Other Sources

SPLOST VI (prior years) $25,000
TOTAL REVENUE SOURCES $25,000

Expenditures
Roads/Bridges

LMIG 30% Match 2020 $4,490
LMIG 30% Match 2021 $4,490
River Street Culvert and Other Paving $16,020

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $25,000

SPLOST XIII FUND
Revenue and Other Sources

SPLOST XIII (prior years) $25,000
TOTAL REVENUE SOURCES $25,000

Expenditures
Roads/Bridges

Paving $25,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $25,000

SPLOST XIX FUND
Revenue and Other Sources

SPLOST XIX (prior years) $93,224
TOTAL REVENUE SOURCES $93,224

Expenditures
Water System

Interfund Transfer Out - Water Capital $93,224

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $93,224

SPLOST VI Capital Budget Expenses

LMIG 30% Match 2020

LMIG 30% Match 2021

River Street Culvert and Other Paving

SPLOST XIII Capital Budget Expenses

Paving

SPLOST XIX Capital Budget Expenses

Interfund Transfer Out - Water Capital



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX 
BUDGET OVERVIEW

FYE21 Budget

Income
Hotel/Motel Tax 3,000

Total Income 3,000

Expenses
Supplies
Tourism Promotion (Contract Out) 1,200
Operating Transfer Out (to General Fund) 1,800

Total Expense 3,000

Net Income 0

40%

60%

Hotel/Motel Tax Distribution

Tourism Promotion
(Contract Out)

Operating Transfer Out
(to General Fund)









































































































































AUTOMATED SPEED ENFORCEMENT SYSTEM AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made t h i s _  day of _ _ _ _  2020, between Blue Line Solutions, LLC (herein 
"BLS"), and the City of Tallulah Falls (herein "City,") a City of the State of Georgia. 

WHEREAS, BLS has the legal possession and processes, referred to collectively as the 
"Automated Speed Enforcement System" (herein "ASE System"), and 

WHEREAS, City desires to use the ASE System to monitor excessive speeding infractions 
and other potential traffic violations, issue traffic notices of violations and evaluate traffic 
movement and safety, affirms it has no other such equipment or service provider, and has 
the right, power and authority to execute this Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree: 

As used in this Agreement, the following words and terms shall apply: 

"Notice of Liability" means a notice of liability issued by a competent state or 
authorized law enforcement agency or by a court of competent jurisdiction relating to an 
infraction evidenced by the ASE System. 

"Person" or "persons" means any individual, partnership, joint venture, corporation, trust, 
unincorporated association, governmental authority or political subdivision thereof or any other form 
of entity. 

"ASE System" means Automated Speed Enforcement System, described as 
photographic traffic monitoring devices capable of accurately detecting a traffic infraction and 
recording such date with images of such vehicle. Each ASE system will contain a minimum of 
one LIDAR/camera for each lane of travel in which enforcement is conducted. 

"Violation" means failure to obey an applicable traffic law or regulation, including, 
without limitation, operating a motor vehicle in excess of the posted speed limit, and operating 
a motor vehicle without displaying a valid license plate. 

2. BLS AGREES TO PROVIDE:

The scope of work identified in Exhibit A. 

3. City AGREES TO PROVIDE:

The scope of work identified in Exhibit B. 

Page 1 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



4. TERMS AND TERMINATION

L _ ,_1  __  r_;;
, 'LJL. . - -1  

a. The term of this Agreement shall be for 1 (one) years beginning on the date of the first notice
of a liability is issued and payable and may be automatically extended for 4 (four) additional 1 (one)
year periods at the sole option of City. Either party may terminate this Agreement at the expiration
of any term providing written notice of its intent not to extend the Agreement at least thirty (30)
days prior to the expiration of the current term.

Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice: 
i) At any time during the term of this Agreement without cause with 30-day notice, provided
however, (x) if the City terminates the Agreement prior to the expiration of any term, the City
shall pay the applicable costs set forth in Exhibit C; and (y) the City shall not terminate this
Agreement without cause in the first year of the term;
ii) If applicable law is changed so as to prohibit or substantially interfere with the operation or
feasibility of the ASE System or the parties' obligations under this Agreement;
iii) For cause, by either party where the other party fails in any material way to perform its
obligations under this Agreement. Termination under this subsection may occur if the terminating
party notifies the other party of its intent to terminate, stating the specific grounds therefore, and
the other party fails to cure the default within sixty (60) days after receiving notice.

b. Upon any termination of this Agreement, the parties recognize that BLS and City will use its
best efforts to continue to process any and all pending and legitimate traffic law violations. Accordingly,
the parties shall have the following obligations which continue during the termination process: City
shall cease using the ASE System, shall allow BLS to retrieve all equipment to BLS within a reasonable
time not to exceed 30 days, and shall not generate further images to be processed. Unless reasonably
agreed upon otherwise by both parties, BLS and City shall continue to process all images and notices
of violation that occurred before termination in accordance with this Agreement and BLS shall be 
entitled to all Fees specified in the Agreement as if the Agreement were still in effect.

c. Upon the expiration of any term of this Agreement or in the event that City receives an offer
for services substantially related to those provided by BLS or the ASE System, the City shall offer BLS
the first right to enter into a new agreement with City prior to signing any agreement with another
provider for provision of services substantially similar to those provided by BLS under this Agreement
(the "Right of First Refusal"). The Right of First Refusal shall be limited to a three (3) year term from
the expiration of this Agreement.

d. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary this Agreement terminates automatically upon
a determination by any Court of jurisdiction, State or Federal, that the ASE System or the underlying
Infraction are unconstitutional, illegal or otherwise prohibited. Any legislative act, State or Federal,
which prohibits the use of the ASE System or the enforcement of the underlying infraction, shall also
automatically terminate this agreement.

Page 2 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



· - , 1  , . .
L I I  /LJ£..--' 

5. ASSIGNMENT AND EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

Neither party may assign all or any portion of this Agreement without the prior written consent of 
the other, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; provided, however, the City 
hereby acknowledges that the performance of BLS's equipment and obligations pursuant to this 
Agreement require a significant investment by BLS, and that, in order to finance such investment, 
BLS may be required to enter into certain agreements or arrangements with financial institutions or 
other similar entities. The City hereby agrees that BLS shall have the right to assign or pledge its 
rights under this Agreement in connection with any financing subject to the City's prior written 
approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The City further agrees 
that in the event BLS provides written notice to the City that it intends to assign or pledge its 
rights pursuant to this Agreement, and in the event that the City fails to provide such approval 
or fails to object within thirty (30) days after its receipt of such notice from BLS, then BLS shall 
be free to effect such transaction. 

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon all of the parties hereto and their respective 
executors, administrators, successors and assigns as permitted by law. 

6. FEES AND PAYMENT

City shall pay BLS for all equipment, services and maintenance based on the Service Fee schedule indicated 
in Exhibit C. 

BLS shall collect and accumulate all payments to City on a monthly basis and provide proper 
payment to City on or before the 15th day of the following month. City shall forward to BLS any 
payments received by City directly from violators within three (3) days of receipt, in order for BLS 
to process and reconcile all payments due and owing under this Agreement. 

7. AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION

BLS agrees that all relevant information obtained by BLS through operation of the ASE System 
shall be made available to City at any time during BLS's normal working hours upon reasonable 
notice, excluding trade secrets and other confidential or proprietary information not reasonably 
necessary for the prosecution of notices of violation or the fulfillment of BLS's obligations to City 
under this Agreement. 

8. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

No information provided by BLS to City will be of a confidential nature, unless specifically 
designated in writing as proprietary and confidential by BLS. Provided, however, nothing in this 
paragraph shall be construed contrary to the terms and provisions of any "Open Records Act" or 
similar laws, insofar as they may be applicable. 

Page 3 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



9. OWNERSHIP OF SYSTEM

L_-,  __ ,_, . .  ,  
, 'L . ,L . ,_ . ,

It is understood by the City that the ASE System, and all associated hardware and software being 
provided by BLS is, and shall remain, the sole property of BLS, unless separately procured by 
City. The ASE System is being provided to City only pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. City 
agrees that it shall not make any modifications to BLS's equipment, nor disassemble or perform 
any type or reverse engineering to the ASE System, nor infringe on any property or patent rights, 
nor cause or allow any other Person to do any of the foregoing. The parties agree that upon 
termination of this Agreement for any reason, BLS shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
remove all equipment provided. 

10. UMITED UABIUTY

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, neither party shall be liable to the 
other, by reason of any representation or express or implied warranty, condition or other term or 
any duty at common or civil law, for any indirect, incidental, special, lost profits or consequential 
damages, however caused and on any theory of liability arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement. 
11. FORCE MAJEURE
Neither party will be liable to the other or be deemed to be in breach of this Agreement for any
failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes beyond its reasonable control.
Such causes may include but are not limited to, acts of God or the public enemy, terrorism,
significant fires, floods, earthquakes, unusually severe weather, epidemics, strikes, or 
governmental authority approval delays or denials. The party whose performance is affected
agrees to notify the other promptly of the existence and nature of any delay.

12. CORRESPONDENCE BETWEEN PARTIES
All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed provided upon the date
postmarked when mailed by first class mail, or by registered mail, and addressed to the proper
party at the address set forth in paragraph 19 below.

13. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Both parties desire all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Agreement to be resolved 
through good-faith negotiations between the parties, and to be followed if necessary by 
professionally-assisted mediation within 45 days. Any such mediator must be acceptable to each 
party. The mediation will be conducted as specified by the mediator and agreed upon by the 
parties. The parties agree to attempt to reach an amicable resolution of the dispute. The 
mediation will be treated as a settlement discussion and remain confidential. Each party will 
bear its own costs in the mediation and will equally share the fees and expenses of the mediator. 

Page 4 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



14. ADDmONAL SERVICES 

L _,_1 __  1 
/LJI- . .J  

Additional systems and services pro·Jided by Blue Line Innovations Holdings may be added to this 
Agreement by mutual consent of the parties in writing as an addendum to this Agreement. All other 
terms and conditions shall remain the same. In the event the City agrees to contract for other services 
provided by BLS or companies owned by Blue Line Holdings, LLC whether or not associated with the 
program herein, City authorize BLS to withdraw invoiced amounts on a one-time basis, or monthly 
basis, whichever is chosen by the City, as payment for products/services. Such services may include 
but are not limited to In-Car Video Systems, Body Worn Cameras, Video/Evidence Storage, & 
Automated License Plate Recognition Systems. 

15. VAUDITY AND CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS 

In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held 
to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability 
shall not affect any other provision and all remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement replaces any previous agreements and discussions and constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matters herein. No amendments, modifications, or 
alterations of the terms herein shall be binding unless the same is in writing and duly executed by the 
parties. 

17. AUDIT RIGHTS 

Each party shall have the right to audit the records of the other party pertaining to the Citations issued 
pursuant to this Agreement solely for :he purpose of verifying the accuracy of payments, if any, payable 
pursuant to this Agreement. Any such audit shall be conducted upon not less than forty-eight hours' notice, 
at mutually convenient times. The cost of any such audit shall be borne by the party requesting the audit. 

18. COVENANT OF FURTHER ASSURANCES

All parties to this Agreement shall, L pon request, perform any and all acts and execute and deliver 
any and all certificates, instrument and other documents that may be necessary or appropriate to 
carry out any of the terms, conditions and provisions hereto or to carry out the intent of this 
Agreement. 

Page 5 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



19, NO AGENCY 

l.;mm_, _1_ 1 " '_ , ,,,, lLJL. . . .J

The relationship between the parties shall be that of independent contractors, and the 
employees, agents and servants of either party shall in no event be considered to be 
employees, agents, or servants of the other party. This Agreement shall not create an agency 
relationship between BLS and City and neither party may incur any debts or liabilities or 
obligations on behalf of the other party, except as specifically provided herein. 

20, NOTICES 

Any notices or demand which under the terms of this Agreement or under any law shall be 
in writing shall be made by personal service, first class mail, or by certified or registered 
mail to the parties at the following address: 

Notices to Blue Line Solutions 
Mark Hutchinson, CEO 
3903 Volunteer Dr., Suite 400 
Chattanooga, TN 37416 

Notices to Tallulah Falls Police Department 
Chief Tonya Elrod 
255 Main St. 
Tallulah Falls, GA 30573 

21, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to require the commission of any act 
contrary to law, and whenever there is a conflict between any term, condition or provision of 
this Agreement and any present or future statute, law, ordinance or regulation contrary to 
which the parties have no legal r'ght to contract, the latter shall prevail, but in such event 
shall be curtailed and limited only to the extent necessary to bring it within the requirements 
of the law, provided it is consiEtent with the intent of the parties as expressed in this 
Agreement. 

Page 6 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



22. STATE LAW TO APPLY

L,. __ , __ ,. . ._",'LJL..--'

This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date accepted by the 
Customer. 

Blue Line Solutions, LLC. 

By: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

City OF _ _ _ _ _  _ 

STATE OF _ _ _ _  _ 

Authorized Signature 

Approved and authorized this _ day of _ _ _ _ _ _ _  , 2020. 

Page 7 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



L_-,  __ , __ ,.,._1, ,'LJL---' 

Exhibit A 
BLS Obligations and Scope of Work 

1) BLS at the request of City shall perform an analysis on selected roadways to 
determine potential violation rates and assess the most suitable locations for the ASE
System equipment.
2) BLS shall provide the quantities of ASE Systems equipment as indicated on Exhibit
D. From time to time, the parties may agree to add or subtract the number of ASE Systems
to be provided and may modify the location(s) if the parties agree in writing.
3) BLS shall provide an automated, web-based processing program for all valid
Notices of Liability including ima,ge processing, mailing of the initial Notice and a reminder
Notice, printing and mailing cos:s. The program shall be conducted in a timely manner to 
comply with any applicable statute of limitation for filing notices of liability. Subject to 
the approval and authorization from City, each Notice shall be delivered by First Class
mail to the registered owner within the agreed or statutory period. City shall notify BLS 
of any Notice of Liability wher:! there is no response, and a second reminder Notice,
including a late fee as determined by City, shall be sent by First Class mail after the
agreed or mandated time perio::t. Subsequent notices or collections notification may be 
delivered by First Class, Certified Mail-Return Receipt Requested, or by process servers
for additional compensation to BLS as agreed by parties.
4) BLS shall provide reasonably available vehicle registration information necessary
to issue Notices of Violation resulting from the ASE System assuming BLS is authorized
to receive such registration dat3 at no additional cost to the Customer.
5) BLS shall provide the C ty the ability to view and print an Evidence Package and 
shall include a set of images with related documentation for each notice of violation
challenged.
6) BLS shall provide necessary training for persons designated by the City, and 
provide reasonable public relations resources to City;
7) BLS shall provide an exJert witness as reasonably necessary to establish judicial
notice for contested violations to establish the accuracy and technical operations of the
ASE System.
8) BLS shall provide City access to an electronic file with regular updates of specific
Notices of Liability issued and shall update the status of all accounts based on the
disposition information provided by City, indicating payments received, Notices of
Liability outstanding, and cases otherwise closed, dismissed or resolved.

Page 8 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



L I "  \ l a - - - - - - ' I I

/ 6 .JL-

9) BLS shall provide to City a monthly report of ASE System results within fifteen
days of the end of each calendar month. The report shall include the following 
information: 
i) Total number of violation events.
ii) Total number of actionable violation events.
iii) Total number of Notices of Liability issued.
iv) Total number of Notices of Liability paid.
v) Such reports on ongoing operations as are required, or such other reports and
documents as are mutually agreed upon between BLS and the City.
10) BLS shall provide all routine maintenance of ASE System equipment and timely respond to
equipment repairs.
11) BLS will provide two (2) radar speed signs per school zone for placement prior to
enforcement cameras. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that the City shall be solely
responsible for placement, installation and obtaining any regulatory approval related thereto.

Page 9 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



. I,-. L "' 
/LJL. . . . I

Exhibit B 
City Obligations and Scope of Work 

1) City shall cause an authorized officer of the agency to carefully review each
potential violation captured by the ASE System, and shall transmit an electronic signature
to each Notice of Liability approved by City. City hereby acknowledges and agrees that
the decision to issue a Notice of Liability shall be the sole, unilateral and exclusive
decision of the authorized officer in such officer's sole discretion, and in no event shall
BLS have the ability or authorization to make a Notice of Liability decision.
2) City shall provide a judge or hearing officer and court facilities to schedule
and hear-disputed citations;
3) City shall provide customary fine collection services for all final dispositions
for contested violations. City agrees to reasonably pursue payments of valid Notices of
Liability with service of follow-up letters or summons as required for contested violations.
4) City shall, upon receiving court dispositions, automatically transmit an 
electronic file in an agreed format to BLS with monthly updates of all Notice of Liability
disposition information provided by the City indicating payments received or cases
otherwise closed, dismissed or resolved for contested violations.
5) City shall direct its departments to cooperate with BLS with respect to 
required system and program implementation and provide reasonable access to City's
personnel and facilities in order to permit BLS and City to fulfill the obligations under this
Agreement.
6) City agrees to use due diligence in working with BLS to acquire in a timely
manner any necessary permits under its control, and approvals or other necessary
documentation from the City as necessary for the operation of the ASE System.
7) City shall ensure the program and its enforcement procedures comply with all
applicable laws and/or policies. City shall ensure all necessary GA DOT permits, as well
as, any other necessary permits necessary to erect ASE systems in school zones are
secured by school district, City or other government agency. City will be solely responsible
for all placement of warning signs in strict compliance with DOT regulations. City shall
provide any necessary permits at no cost to BLS.
8) City shall complete and sign letter to NLETS authorizing BLS to retrieve vehicle data 
records for processing. 
9) As necessary, City shall provide assistance to BLS in obtaining access to vehicle
ownership records data, and if requested, provide a letter and support for BLS to use
with appropriate licensing bureau agencies indicating that BLS is acting as an authorized
agent of City for the purposes of accessing vehicle ownership information on behalf of
City.

Page 10 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



10) City will make available to BLS their Public Works Department, Electricians,
or other staff to determine locations of poles, placement of poles, gaining access
electricity, electricity hookup, etc. as needed. To the extent such is necessary, City will
assist BLS in obtaining all City, state, and city or special permits needed for placement of
poles, electricity, or any other service needed for the installation and usage of the ASE
System. BLS will place and install poles at the direction of the City. After installation by
BLS, City shall make any requests for changes, alterations or modifications related thereto
in writing and shall be responsible for any expenses incurred by BLS in making such
changes, alterations or modifications.
11) City shall operate the ASE System each day school is in session, as authorized
by law throughout the duration of the agreement. City shall supply BLS with appropriate
school schedules and times for pre-programming of cameras for use, as provided by the
school system.
12) City shall not capture infractions with ASE System outside the permitted time according
to state statute. This includes early dismissals, snow days, school cancellation, etc. City will have the
ability to turn the ASE System off during unpermitted use periods, however, City may make a written
request for BLS to turn the ASE System off during unpermitted time periods. City shall notify BLS of
any school closing, and BLS shall wait one day to process any violations received, in order to ensure
adequate time is given for any potential such notification. City shall indemnify and hold harmless BLS
against all liabilities and expenses arising from City's failure to notify BLS of any closings or changes
in school schedules.
13) City shall be responsible for reporting unpaid citations to the Department of Revenue in 
accordance with statutory requirements.
14) City shall properly reimburse BLS for any damage to the ASE System caused by City, its
employees or authorized agents.
15) City shall issue a letter to BLS showing its authorized use for pole identified for ASE
System to be mounted.
16) City shall provide a project manager or other designated induvial with authority to
execute City's responsibilities under the Agreement.

Page 11 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



Exhibit C 
Service Fees 

L .. . .  , . .  111111a1.•. ;,
,'LJL.....J 

The City agrees to pay BLS the Fee(s) as itemized below: 

Revenue of paid Notice of Liability shall be shared between the two parties: 

The City's portion shall be 65% of all paid Notice of Liabilities and BLS's portion 
shall be 35% of all paid Notice of Liabilities. No fees or charges will be assessed 
to the agency for non-paid violations. 

BLS provides all ASE equipment, installation, wireless integration, & infrastructure. 
ASE System equipment and installation costs are recovered by BLS in 24 equal 
monthly installments from net revenue generated and apportioned to BLS from 
revenue share. In the event the agreement is terminated by the City as allowed by 
Section 4.A.(i), prior to full recovery of equipment and installation costs, the City 
will be responsible for the balance. The parties agree the cost of development, 
implementation, and installation of the ASE System is $75,000 per installed ASE 
Camera System, and upon early termination under Section 4.A.(i) the City shall 
reimburse BLS for such cost of the ASE System used by City. Full payment of all 
such costs will be due within 30 days after the date of termination. 

Fees Charged to Violators 

A credit card convenience fee of $4.90 to be charged to the violator using a credit 
card (unless prohibited by state statute) for violation payment paid via the 
Internet. Such convenience fees shall be collected by BLS during payment of 
violation and shall not be shared with City or included in City's share of Revenue. 

Page 12 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT



Exhibit D 

L_ . .  . . . .  1 _ _  . . .  ;; 
l L J L . . . J

Number and Locations of ASE System Equipment 

The number of ASE System cameras and equipment, as well as the locations for installation 
will be determined after a careful analysis by Agency and BLS personnel, considering traffic 
dynamics, volume and safety assessments on the Customer's roadways. Based on such 
analysis, BLS and Customer have determined the following: 

_ _  ( _ ) A S E  Systems will be provided: Additional units may be added without contract 
amendment. 

Agreed to this date: 

Authorized Signature Date 

Blue Line Solutions, LLC Signature Date 

Page 13 of 13 

Initial of Authorized Signature 

DRAFT

















































Asssasadasdasdasdsadasddasdasdsadddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddd
dddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddd 

 

July 6, 2020 

 
Town of Tallulah Falls        Sent via email to:  clerk@tallulahfallsga.gov    
Attn: Honorable Mayor Early                    
P.O. Box 56  
255 Main Street  
Tallulah Falls, Georgia 30573 
 
Honorable Mayor Early 

Please find the June report below.  The month of June seems to have been quiet with very few 
issues with the exception of the Jungle Line. 

Updates on the City’s water system. 

As you are all now aware, the jungle line has failed and has caused EMS and the City to spring 
into emergency actions. On Wednesday 6/24/2020 Scott Porter was doing his weekly water 
inspections he went into the booster station located at the City’s 55k tank, when he entered 
the room and went to read the meter that tells us what flow is being pumped to the Hickory 
Nut system he noticed that the meter was spinning out of control and the pumps were not 
running. Scott immediately acted and closed the valve that feeds the booster pumps.  Once the 
valve was closed the meter stopped.  

By this time Scott understood that there was an issue between the booster station and the 
Hickory Nut tank. Scott then drove to Gorge View Road and checked for leaks within the areas 
of what he could see. This included checking the valves adjacent to Mr. Early’s property. Scott 
then drove through the woods along the path of the Hickory Nut Feed line looking for issues. By 
this time Josh Lester of EMS arrived to assist with trying to find a possible solution to the leak. 
Josh and Scott started to close valves and run tests on the jungle line to help isolate where the 
leak might be. When the crew closed the valves located next to Mr. Early’s property and 
opened the feed valve for the booster tank the meter started to spin out of control with no 
pumps active yet again. At that point it was decided that it would be better to leave the valve 
shut until the next day and then start to build a plan. 

Thursday 6/25/2020 Mike Sams met with Scott Porter to start looking at plans along with Mr. 
Larry Hamilton.  After a short time it was decided to lay a temporary line across the ground 
coming from the City’s main tank over to the valve connection at Mr. Early’s property. EMS 
contacted Sam Davis for assistance so that the line could be laid across the valley and 
connected. Sam Davis brought over 613’ of 3” line and assisted EMS to lay the temporary line. 



By the afternoon the line had been laid and testing was begun, the first test was to slightly fill 
the line to make sure that all glue joints were holding. Once the line confirmed that it would 
hold water EMS started pressure checking the line to see if the water could be sent over to the 
Hickory Nut tank and then the line burst. After the rupture the line was reglued and left to dry 
overnight.  The next morning Mike Sams returned to try the line again and while the line was 
filling from the booster station the line ruptured again due to high pressure of the elevation of 
the tanks. I talked with Brian RIndt and found that the line itself is good for what was trying to 
be accomplished but due to elevation between the tanks it would be almost impossible to run 
the line without pressure issues. After trying several times to run the line I made the decision 
that we would do the best we could with the wells within the city. As we all know the current 
well at Hickory Nut will not last forever with its low production, so chancing the well needs to 
be very temporary. I informed Mr. Early of the decision and Mr. Hamilton as well, we have now 
spoken with Brian Rindt and have a plan in place to bypass the Jungle Line by adding a booster 
station just above Mr. Goachers house. I will include drawings along with the report. 

1. Hickory Nut System upgrades: Harrison Construction is scheduled to start anytime and we are 
desperately waiting on his ground breaking. 

2. SCADA System updates,  
1. Ems has now gotten an update from High Tide Technologies that there is a system that can 

monitor the level in the tanks and send updates by email and live logs online, they have 
inspected the 55k tank and we are waiting for prices. I called today 7/6/2020 and they are 
getting the final cell service cost. 

3. The City’s 55k storage tank needs to be fully cleaned, I now have some information that will help 
begin the quotes to clean the tank, and Brian RIndt has now shown plans that indicate a floor 
drain located within the tank. This is great news and will help drain the tank for the cleaning 
process, although it is unknown at this time how long it has been since the valve was opened. 
The plan is to get quotes on cleaning the tank fully with the possibility of having to replace the 
floor valve if fails. 

4. On 6/23/20 EMS added a 1” Flow meter to the backwash line on the sand filters at the main city 
well, this allows for better tracking of water loss from the filter cleanings. Still watching to have 
a full month of readings before can give full updates. 

5. The Filter system at Hickory Nut Well 104 has begun to leak, the filter has had a make shift 
repair at some time in the history and needs to be changed, I have contacted Metro Filter for 
pricing and ideas. 

The Water Readings for the month are Off by Extreme Numbers, We are working to chase down the 
issue to see if we did indeed lose a lot of water through the Jungle Line Failure or we have a few Bad 
Meters! 

 

6.  (Water usage and loss)  
1. For the Month of June 2020 Well 101 the City Well Pumped – 687,400 Gallons Highest Ever. 
2. Hickory Nut well 104 meter pumped 171,900 gallons (JUNGLE LINE FAILURE) 
3. Combined Pumping of Wells 104 and 101 was – 839,200 gallons?  



4. Metered usage for the cities system including Hickory Nut was 382,729 gallons 
5. Total Stored water between the City’s 55k tank and Hickory Nut is 65,000 gallons 
6. Estimated backwash from filters at city’s main well (per estimated history) 100,000 gallons. 
7. The Meter for the Booster transfere station read 169,200 gallons which seems off for 

possible loss. 
8. No hydrants flushed for month of June used 0 gallons. 
9. There have been overflow concerns at the city’s main tank and to include ongoing history of 

the Hickory Nut Tank overflowing. Overflow pipe looks much dryer since adjustments have 
been made at Hickory Nut. 

10. Fire Department Flushing - Unknown 
11. Total Water loss for the month of June- Still Tracing True Numbers Ems is testing Meters to 

confirm numbers. 
 
UPDATE: The Control float in the 55k tank has been working to help assist with the wells 
feed to the tank, there have been a couple of issues with the float not activating as felt that 
it should but has been adjusted to work better. 
 

PAST INFORMATION WITH FOLLOW UP: 

 
Updates on the water system. 
 

1. Same Continual -The new chemicals are in place and seem to be working great.  The pH and the 
Chlorine levels are stabilized now requiring very little attention.  Also the flushing of water 
throughout the city has greatly improved with the new chemicals in place. Chemical usage is 
around 2.8 gallons per week of disinfectant and 7 gallons a week of PH stabilizer. 

2. Inspection of the 10k Hickory Nut tank looks great the water quality with chemical changes have 
made a huge difference in clarity of the tanks water. Looking forward in getting the new tank 
installed. 

 

The City’s Laboratory results for June 2020 were all noted as Absent for Total Coliform! This means that 
water quality is good with no concerns. 

 

Please feel free to call with any questions. 

 

Regards, 

Mike Sams  

 





., 

I• • l ~ ,, r.• 11 Rindt-McDuff Associates, Inc. 
,,; Engineering and Environmental Consulting 

PROJECT NO. f?.. ZO (7 - // 7 

JOB T , F ,( I l .$ 

PAGE __ _ OF 

TITLE Tci,+tp, Boosf-ey S-f-4.,, Hvd Pro-r:Je. 

334 Cherokee Street 
Marietta, Georgia 30060 

Telephone: (770) 427-8123 
Fax: (770) 425-8930 

BY R ,· I'\ d + DATE 6 - $ 0 - :U,2-e) 

CHECKED BY __________ _ DATE ________ _ 

_ _ -.-----.--.--,----.-----,--~~=---.::.J :: Z S-: ~ oo S P J I( 2 ,. ~-' p 1-toi 

I 1 1 1 
1 1 1 '1 1 

~ ----j--+-f---t---+-+-+--+--+--1--+----+--_J_-l-j_ ·-:-• _..._I --fl-+-_L_-+-__j-+-_L__j____JL-J 

t-c--t--t--t-----t-----+~~~-+-"~~~3!.I~~~ ~o* I I 
I I I i I i I : 

i I I I I I ; 3 J11 ~ lH~ r· .;,J;_3:·1 fqL ff v,hveho k : : I I I l I I I I 
I 

7 

2 oo() _'.__I ' [ c, [ 4, 4, t?_ I / h ~~ [ --+-+I -+---+---+-+-----'--,-___,,_i_,...,. 

. I I I ! I 

1'}00 

1800 

l7t>I'> 

-r-1-+---+- -+---!--+-t--t--t-+--1----f-+--+-f--+-'--.J.-..-t--t-+--+--if--+-r+--....!'-==,.;;i-..l¼-' I I Ill -r::1 I I I I 

t---t 
. I 

l 
I 
i 

1 '2-S S- T • ,. + 1° Io, C>oo ,;,'-= '•+==:..::"+k:___,r--+--+1 -L--'---+--,--L--+---1--,,~...,_.~!'h+-~~ 

1-lL =i ei .14 x z&-.~ -- 1 rJ 4- .r-1, P~ ~s~.~"" I I p 
, ! j ; l@U_1 b-JpA__ kLl~ oi1s-ru,J~, I j r· f i ' j : _l _l _l 

I - ·, - l - 4 I 
I I I ...:=- i b, I S°'X ' 2. .::, ,-- . I 

I • ! . I ' I i I 
: I I I I I I ! I '- l I I 

, : 1 1 1 , , 1 , , 1 1 , i 1 1 1 1 1 1 11 , r 1 ~® 
I I I I I I : I I i l I I l I ;t-5l11 ! 

18F' 
4 I I I I I I I I I I _ 1 _l _J_ j 1 j l . i J_ j f, 11 I 

I 

I 
-+ 

! 
I 

-l-

I r 

' I 

! t f~~ft~aJ7+E£t~'tJ~~L 
I-+ -+-f------1--__l_- I 

l I I li-b) I I 1 
1 I I I JI I i I hi 

~ 

II f i 1· ~ I ."' I I I ·-., l'J. t:) I / I 

I 

j_ I } I • ) 
" -t---;---tt-~-+---+---+-++--+-~-,-- --+-~-,..-;:;:;;;;;:-1,!'!"~J I (1 f 5'1 p s,' I.[ 2!2_ 

- .,...~ __,_,--+-# I. I , • r ) 
- - --n-nr- '"zei '~ Ip~, ,,.. 

I t,lv, I 
,"-j'j---,,-,----=---;-+---+:: _ _:::!_tf,1:..,._,_-_-'-.-,.,rr'T'~...,._...,.......,c--1 

1600 .J.. -- +--~
1
-~--1 

· I 3jps, I 

1--~ t 

I,_, _.. I fcf- i
1 

,--1 
N.1 _ c;:_~,., 

I I ·-. I -t I I 

I 5'Do ~ --,- ~ ~-t-t---l±-1f--l--t--\-J_~--4---~~ I 
l~----+-1 -I -t---+---+-\---1----+--l-.-l.......___::;:_:_~ '-'----+---+--+----+--+---l---

~-~~..L___,___j,__L_--'-_j______L__L_j_ I 

1 l 
I 

1 
I 



T Falls 



35 

30 

25 

20 
E 
C. 
b0 15 

10 -

5 

0 

0 20 

T Falls Booster Station 

2 - 3 HP single phase 13-stage pumps 

---+----- -----

.. - ---- -- _.....,... __ ---------+----------+----------+--- ---- +-- - - - - ·• 

40 60 80 100 120 140 160 
... . 

psi 



6/30/2020 PVC Pipes - Friction Loss and Flow Velocities Schedule 80 
·------· ---- ---- -- -- -- - -- --------

11/2 inches - --- - -·-·--- - -

L 
Volume Flow Volume.Flow Velocity Friction Head Friction Loss 

(gal/min) (gal/hr) (ft/sec) (ft/100ft) (psi/100 ft) 
-·- -

60 3600 11.3 28.7 12.4 

2inches 
- - -- - ·-

Volume Flow Volume Flow Velocity Friction Head Friction Loss 
(gal/min) (gal/hr) (ft/sec) (ft/100ft) (psi/100 ft) 

5 300 0.6 0.1 0.04 
·- --

7 420 0.8 0.2 0.07 
10 600 1.1 0.3 0.1 - -
15 900 1.7 0.6 0.3 - -
20 1200 2.2 1.1 0.5 

·- ·-· 
25 1500 2.8 1.6 0.7 
-·. -- - - -- - -~ -
30 1800 3.4 2.3 1.0 
35 2100 3.9 3.0 1.3 -- - - t -- - -
40 2400 4.5 3.8 1.7 - -- --
45 2700 5.0 4.8 2.1 

;- -- --
50 3000 5.6 5.8 2.5 - ~ --
60 3600 6.7 8.1 3.5 

I - ·-- - -· - - - ;- ·- -
70 4200 7.8 10.8 4.7 I - -- - - - - I 75 4500 8.4 12.3 5.3 -- - -- - -- - I 80 4800 8.9 13.8 6.0 I 

- . -- -- - ~ - ---· - ---- - I 
90 5400 10.1 17.2 7.5 I ·-·- -+-· - -- -· --- ~ --· --- l 100 6000 11.2 20.9 9.1 __ ! -----

2 1/2 inches 
-·--· -· 

Volume Flow Volume Flow Velocity Friction Head Friction Loss 
(gal/min) (gal/hr) (ft/sec) (ft/100ft) (psi/100 ft) - -- ! 5 300 0.4 0.05 0.02 

f 
- ---- - - --7 420 0.5 0.07 0.03 -· - - ~ -- ·-

10 600 0.8 0.1 0.05 ---·- -- - - - I 15 900 1.2 0.3 0.1 -- - -- - ! 20 1200 1.6 0.4 0.2 ·- - . -I 25 1500 2.0 0.7 0.3 

I 
- - -- -
30 1800 2.3 0.9 0.4 - _,.. -- - - -- -- -35 2100 2.7 1.3 0.5 ·-- -- - ,.. __ -
40 2400 3.1 1.6 0.7 

--'- -- - -· - -- - -45 2700 3.5 2.0 0.9 - -·-- - - -- --
50 3000 3.9 2.4 1.1 - - ----- --- -
60 3600 4.7 3.4 . 1.5 -- -- ~ - ·-· 
70 4200 5.5 4.5 2.0 
75 4500 5.9 5.1 2.2 

' - - - -- - - - - -- - - -I 80 4800 6.2 5.8 2.5 ~ - - ·- - --- ~ ·- -90 5400 7.0 7.2 3.1 >· - --I 
100 6000 7.8 8.7 3.8 f 

I -- - -- -- - --
I 125 7500 9.8 13.2 5.7 r - - •· -
I 150 9000 11.7 18.5 8.0 I ____ _, 

3inches 
·- --

Volume Flow Volume Flow Velocity Friction Head Friction Loss 
(gal/min) (gal/hr) (ft/sec) (ft/100ft) (psi/100 ft) 

~ 

5 300 0.3 0.02 0.01 --
https://www.engineeringtoolbox.com/pvc-pipes-friction-loss-d_803.html 3/14 



6/30/2020 PVC Pipes - Friction Loss and Flow Velocities Schedule 80 
- - - - --- --- -, 

3inches 
Volume Flow Volume Flow Velocity Friction Head Friction Loss 

(gal/min) (gal/hr) (ft/sec) (ft/100ft) (psi/100 ft) 

7 420 0.4 0.03 0.01 

10 600 0.5 0.04 0.02 

15 900 0.8 0.09 0.04 
- -

20 1200 1.0 0.2 0.07 -
25 1500 1.3 0.2 0.1 

30 1800 1.5 0.3 0.1 

35 2100 1.7 0.4 0.2 

40 2400 2.0 0.5 0.2 
45 2700 2.2 0.7 0.3 

50 3000 2.5 0.8 0.4 

60 3600 3.0 1.1 0.5 
-

70 4200 3.5 1.5 0.7 
-

75 4500 3.7 1.7 0.7 

80 4800 4.0 1.9 0.8 
--

90 5400 4.5 2.4 1.0 - -
100 6000 5.0 2.9 1.3 -
125 7500 6.2 4.4 1.9 

-
150 9000 7.5 6.2 2.7 

~ -
175 10500 8.7 8.3 3.6 

200 12000 10.0 10.6 4.6 

250 15000 12.5 16.0 6.9 -----
---
4inches 

Volume Flow Volume Flow Velocity Friction Head Friction Loss 
(gal/min) (gal/hr) (ft/sec) (ft/100ft) (psi/100 ft) 

20 1200 0.6 0.04 0.02 -
25 1500 0.7 0.06 0.03 

-
30 1800 0.9 0.08 0.04 

~ 

35 2100 1.0 0.1 0.05 -
40 2400 1.2 0.1 0.06 

- --
45 2700 1.3 0.2 0.07 - - -
50 3000 1.4 0.2 0.09 

-
60 3600 1.7 0.3 0.1 
- -
70 4200 2.0 0.4 0.2 - - - ~ - -
75 4500 2.2 0.5 0.2 

- ~ 

80 4800 2.3 0.5 0.2 
-- -

90 5400 2.6 0.6 0.3 
- -- -· .. ~ 

-

100 6000 2.9 0.8 0.3 
125 7500 3.6 1.2 0.5 

- -
150 9000 4.3 1.6 0.7 

-
175 10500 5.0 2.2 0.9 

200 12000 5.7 @ 1.2 - -

250 15000 7.2 4.2 1.8 
300 18000 8.6 5.8 2.5 
350 21000 10.0 7.8 3.4 
400 24000 11.5 9.9 4.3 .____ - - ----- - -- . - ---- - ---------- ------

-- --- -- -
5inches 

-- ---
https://www.engineeringtoolbox.com/pvc-pipes-friction-loss-d_803.html 4/14 



z 
0 
i= 
~ 
Cl) 

0.. 
~ 
::::> 
0.. 

.La.or.RIJB --

'"-----------1~~~·"s··~·'="-~' r r-,l.H·.OOlll ,_...,. 'b 

------'-=~l ~ 



OJ 

n 

co • 
----

• 
N 

_..'"\ __ _ 
s·n,,. _ 

l.H·HCZW ,_,...,,. ~ 

SllV.:1 HVlnllV.U0 NMOl - . 
- J ------=- ,..,,._-,-t 

<C 

w 
_J 
(.'.) 

z 0:::: 
cno 

-- 0 
NO 

(/) 
i--: 
z 



z 
0 
F" _..., 
V) 
zo 
<I-

~ 

: .-

z 
0 
I-
u 
::, 
Cf) 

0... 
:::E 
::, 
0... 

S11'v'.:::I H'v'1n71'v'.LJ0 NMO.L 

w w> 
I- __J 
<(<( 
e>> 

~w 
U> 
W__J 
I<( 
u> 

/ 

__J 

0 
0 
0... 
Cf) 

N 
.-

<( 

z ui 
0 ..,.: 
I- :i u 
w 
Cf) 

z 
0 
F• _..., 
V) 
zo 
<(I-

~ 

CD 

z ui 
0..,.: 
I- z u 
w 
Cf) 

- , 
- J -I----M3/'------'-i 





FY2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT  
 

GENERAL FUND 

       Original     Prior Amend     YTD   Final Amend 

General Fund Revenue 339,081   328,000 

 Property Taxes $124,300   132,000 

 Franchise Taxes $23,435   22,225 

 Interfund Transfer In - Hotel/Motel Tax  $1,200   1,500 

 Insurance Premium Tax $12,000   12,700 

 Motor Vehicle Tax $55,000   8,000 

 Licenses/Permits $2,750   4,700 

 Grants $14,881   5,800 

 Fines & Forfeitures $81,500   112,700 

 Interest Revenues $800   450 

 Contributions  $4,000   550 

 Rent $4,800   4,800 

 Reimbursements $4,390   6,000 

 Sale of Assets $10,000   16,240 

 Other $25   335 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES 339,081  328,219 328,000 

EXPENDITURES Original Prior 

Amend 

YTD Final Amend 

Executive 9,490  2,629 3,000 

Legislative 8,330  5,767 7,000 

Administration 138,809  131,183 140,000 

Police 105,006  101,877 110,000 

Fire 30,463  14,928 29,500 

Municipal Court 19,450  18,236 20,000 

Streets & Highways 27,533  15,115 18,500 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 339081  288,785 328,000 

Interfund Transfer Out – Water Fund 0 11,880 11,880 38,880 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 345,900  300,665 366,800 

Net (Use of Surplus to Balance Budget) 0  27,554 (38,880) 

 

WATER FUND 

 

Income – Water Charges  64,730  54,150 

Income – Interest 50  125 

Income – Other  28,845 28,845 

Interfund Transfer In - General Fund 0 98,407 38,880 

Interfund Transfer In - SPLOST  93,659  30,000 

TOTAL INCOME & OTHER SOURCES 158,435  152,000 

  



 Original Prior Amend YTD Final Amend 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 64,780  77,744 85,000 

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 93,659 210,659 63,049 85,593 

TOTAL WATER FUND EXPENSES 158,439  140,793 170,593 

Net (Use of Water CD Reserves) 0 18,593  (18,593) 

 

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL BUDGET 

       Original          Final Amendment 

Revenue    

 LMIG 13,619  14,966 

 SPLOST IV 7,865  6,138 

 SPLOST VI 70,265  2,830 

 SPLOST XIII 76,694  568 

 SPLOST XIX 0  28,430 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES 168,443  52,932 

EXPENDITURES    

LMIG 13,619  14,966 

Roads - LMIG 30% Match 4,100  4,490 

Roads - Other 30,765  1,648 

Public Safety (Police) 5,000  0 

Public Safety (Fire) 13,800  0 

Public Facilities 4,000  1,828 

Parks/Recreation 3,500  0 

Interfund Transfer Out – Water 93,659  30,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 168,443  52,932 

 

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND 

INCOME    

Hotel/Motel Tax 2,000  3,000 

TOTAL INCOME & OTHER SOURCES 2,000  3,000 

    

EXPENSES    

Tourism Promotion (Contract) 800   1,200 

Supplies 0  100 

Operating Transfer Out – GF 1200  1,700 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2,000  3,000 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 


	07.09.20 RM AGENDA PACKET
	07.09.20 RM AGENDA PACKET
	07.09.20 RM AGENDA
	Budget Summary
	Summary-Gen
	Water Summary
	Capital
	Hotel


	2020-07-06 June Report 2020
	07.09.20 plans
	07.09.20 RM AGENDA PACKET

	FY2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT SUMMARY year end
	06.04.20 RM MINUTES



